
 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – January 11, 2021   Page 1 of 2 

 

 
Date: January 11, 2021 
Place: Zoom Webinar  
Time: 5:00 p.m. 
             
 

1. Call to Order 
 

A. Roll call 
 

 

2. Approval of Agenda  
 

A. Pg 1 /Agenda 
 
 

3. Elect 2021 Chair and Vice Chair 
 
 

4. Public Comment (for items not specifically listed on the Agenda) 
Individuals wishing to comment that are calling in by phone, please press *9 to raise 
your hand.  If connecting by computer, please click the “raise hand” feature. You will 
be notified when it is your turn to speak. Before commenting, please identify yourself 
for the record. You will have three minutes to address the Board.  
 

 

5. Consent Agenda (Single Motion)  
 

A. Excused Absences:   
B. Pg 3 /Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of December 28, 2020    
C. Pg 7 /Approval of:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Pg 22 /For Informational Purposes Only - The following electronic payments totaling $3,045,082.95 

are included in Warrants noted above:  

 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 10594 to 10599 -$861,059.09 (Included in A/P Warrant 55597) 
 Accounts Payable EFT numbered 10600 to 10626 - $61,473.12 (Included in A/P Warrant 55613) 
 Employee EFT Contributions/Deductions including all taxes & retirement numbered 49822 to 

50130 -$2,122,550.74 (Included in A/P Warrant 55599) 
 

 

6. Unfinished Business (Second Reading and Final Action) 
 
 

7. New Business (First Reading) 
 
 
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55596 to 55607 totaling $ 4,296,789.76 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55608 to 55633 totaling $ 118,258.14 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55634 to 55634 totaling $ 636.05 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107486 to 107492 totaling $ 33,623.88 
Net Payroll Warrants Numbered 107493 to 107493 totaling $ 1,199.82 

GRAND TOTAL $ 4,450,507.65 

1



 

 
             CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE       

                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING AGENDA        

CPFR Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda – January 11, 2021   Page 2 of 2 

 
 
 

8. Considerations and Requests 
 

A. Pg 42 /Interlocal Agreement District No. 21 Emergency Management Services 
and Operations – DC Stueve 

 
 

9. Staff, Local, Firefighter's Association and Fire Chief Reports 
 

A. Pg 49 /Training – AC Juarez 
 
 

B. Pg 50 /Health & Safety – AC McKenzie 
 

 

C. Pg 51 /Logistics – AC Stueve 
 
 

D. Pg 52 /Human Resources – HRD Washo 
 

 

E. Pg 53 /Community & Government Relations – Capt. Shaw 
i. Pg 54 /2020 Social Media Statistics 

 
 

F. Pg 62 /Fire Chief – Chief Olson 
 

 

10. Correspondence 
 
 

11. Commissioner Comments  
 
 

12. Executive Session under RCW 42.30.110(1)(g) to review the performance of a 
public employee.  
 
 

13. Adjournment 

2



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 1 of 4                                                                                                   December 28, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 

CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE & RESCUE 
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

December 28, 2020 
 
 
Chair Holm called the Regular meeting of the Board of Commissioners for Central 
Pierce Fire & Rescue to order by Zoom webinar. Present were Chair Holm, 
Commissioners Stringfellow, Coleman, Willis and Eckroth, Chief Olson, Deputy Chief 
Stueve, FD Robacker, HRD Washo, Assistant Chiefs Overby, Kent and Bouchard, and 
Executive Assistant Porter, recorder. Ex-Officio/Mayor Door’s absence was excused. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded to approve the 
agenda. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
PUBLIC COMMENT (FOR ITEMS NOT SPECIFICALLY ON THE AGENDA) 
No public comment.  
 
CONSENT AGENDA (SINGLE MOTION)  

A. Excused Absences: Ex-Officio/Mayor Door 
B. Minutes: Regular Board Meeting of December 14, 2020    
C. Approval of: 

 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve 
the Consent Agenda with warrants totaling $565,532.85. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS (SECOND READING AND FINAL ACTION) 

A. Resolution No. 20-14 - Electronic and Digital Signature Technology Use 
 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to approve 
Resolution No. 20-14. MOTION CARRIED.  
 

B. Resolution No. 20-15 - 2021 Fees, Charges, Fines 
 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve 
Resolution No. 20-15. MOTION CARRIED.  
 

C. Resolution No. 20-16 - 2020 Year End Budget Amendment 
 
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to approve 
Resolution No. 20-16. MOTION CARRIED.  
 

Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55527 to 55527 totaling $ 1,375.50 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55528 to 55565 totaling $ 378,757.81 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55566 to 55595 totaling $ 186,402.26 
Accounts Payable Warrants Numbered 55062 to 55062 totaling $ (1,002.72) 

GRAND TOTAL $ 565,532.85 

3



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 2 of 4                                                                                                   December 28, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 

NEW BUSINESS (FIRST READING – FOR DISCUSSION AND REVIEW ONLY) 
No new business. 
 
CONSIDERATIONS AND REQUESTS  

A. Personal Services Contracts and Revised Board Policies 340 and 341  
 
i. Personal Services Contracts 
 

HRD Washo highlighted changes from previous contracts. Commissioner Stringfellow 
moved and Commissioner Eckroth seconded to approve the Personal Service Contracts 
for January 1, 2021, through December 31, 2023, for all Non-Uniformed, Non-
Represented personnel. MOTION CARRIED.  

 
ii. Revised Board Policies 340 and 341 
 

HRD Washo highlighted changes from the previous policies. Commissioner Stringfellow 
moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve the revised Policies 340 
(FLSA Exempt, Non-Represented, Non-Uniformed Employees Common Benefits) and 
341 (FLSA Non-Exempt, Non-Represented, Non-Uniformed Employees Common 
Benefits). MOTION CARRIED.  

 
B. Salary Schedules for Chiefs, Firefighters, Non-Uniformed and Non-Represented 

Employee Groups (Except OPEIU) 
 
HRD Washo clarified that salary sheets included all employee groups except for OPEIU, 
which is still in negotiations. Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Coleman seconded to approve the 2021 Salary Schedules for the Chiefs, Firefighters, 
Non-Uniformed and Non-Represented groups. MOTION CARRIED. 

  
C. Board Policy 320 Vehicle Use  

 
The policy reflects the recent change in FLSA status of the Day Shift Battalion Chief.  
Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to approve 
revised Policy 320 (Vehicle Use). MOTION CARRIED. 

 
D. Local 726 – Non-Uniformed CBA Revisions to Include IT Personnel  

 
The revisions are a result of negotiations held to bring the Information Technology 
Personnel into the bargaining unit. Commissioner Stringfellow moved and 
Commissioner Eckroth seconded to approve the revised 2019 – 2021 Local 726 Non-
Uniformed Collective Bargaining Agreement to include Information Technology 
Personnel. MOTION CARRIED. 

 
E. Extension of Agreement for Information Technology Services  

 
The agreement, once signed by all districts currently contracting with CPFR for IT 
services, would allow for a one-year extension of their agreement at the same terms 
and conditions currently in effect. 

4



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 3 of 4                                                                                                   December 28, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 

Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded to approve 
the Extension of Agreements for Information Technology Services. MOTION CARRIED.  
 
STAFF, LOCAL, FIREFIGHTERS’ ASSOCIATION AND FIRE CHIEF REPORTS (For 
Information Only) 
The following divisions provided a written report in the packet: 

A. Finance – FD Robacker reviewed items in her report.  
B. Field Operations – AC Kent included the November Operations/EMS Report in 

his report.  He recognized Wes Courtney, Luke Courtney, and the Chiefs for 
participating in the highly successful Santa run. With all of the hardships with 
COVID, we have not had anyone contract COVID from work.  

C. EMS – AC Bouchard highlighted topics in his report.  
D. Prevention and Education – AC Overby reported that his division has really come 

together to fill the gap of being down one DFM. He recognized Captain Shaw for 
his work on the Santa run. He also recognized DFM Wohrle who has stepped up 
to work with local eateries to keep them in business. 

E. Information Technology – ITD Kay. 
F. DC of Administration – DC Karns.  
G. DC Operations – DC Stueve shared several cooperative initiatives he is working 

on. He included draft information on the Duty Chief program, which will help with 
notifications to the Fire Chief and Commissioners. 

H. Fire Chief’s Report – Chief Olson thanked the Board for the work accomplished 
at this meeting. CPFR has been very fortunate that there have not been any on-
the-job COVID cases. The men and women of this organization are doing a great 
job in this tough environment and he can’t thank them enough for following 
guidelines. Chair Holm commented that the numbers clearly speak for 
themselves. 

 
CORRESPONDENCE 
Employee Recognition. 
 
COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
Commissioner Coleman thanked everyone for their cooperation and hard work this 
year. He wished everyone a Happy New Year.  
 
Commissioner Eckroth wished everyone a Happy New Year. 
 
Commissioner Stringfellow received several calls from grateful citizens on the Santa 
run. He will share his idea for recognizing the historical significance of the future Station 
73 site at a future meeting. 
 
EXECUTIVE SESSION  
At 6:00 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Coleman seconded 
to move into Executive Session for 15 minutes under RCW 42.30.140 – collective 
bargaining until 6:15 p.m.  
 
At 6:15 p.m., Chair Holm extended the meeting for five minutes. 
 

5



DRAFT – Not Official Until Approved 
 

Board of Commissioners 
Page 4 of 4                                                                                                   December 28, 2020 Board Meeting Minutes 

At 6:20 p.m., Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner Willis seconded to 
return to Regular Session. MOTION CARRIED. No action was taken during Executive 
Session. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
There being no further business, Commissioner Stringfellow moved and Commissioner 
Eckroth seconded to adjourn the meeting. MOTION CARRIED. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 6:22 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
            
MATTHEW HOLM    TANYA ROBACKER 
CHAIR OF THE BOARD   DISTRICT SECRETARY 
 
 
 
      
DIANNE PORTER 
RECORDER  

6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 01/11/2021 

Item Title:  Interlocal Agreement-District No. 21 Emergency Management Services and        

Operations 

Attachments:  Interlocal Agreement 

Submitted by E. Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

First reading  
Second reading  
Motion to approve  
For information only  
Other:  

 
SUMMARY:     
 
Motion: To authorize Chief Olson signing the agreement to provide DOC service to District 21. 
 
Attached is the proposed interlocal agreement outlining cooperation with District 21 (Graham 
Fire & Rescue). 
 
Highlights: 

1. We provide initial and ongoing training in DOC/HIRL (District Operations Center/High 
Incident Response Load) operations. 

2. We schedule and conduct regular exercises to ensure DOC & operational readiness. 
3. Graham Fire & Rescue remunerates to Central Pierce Fire & Rescue 25% of the cost of 

the readiness exercises ($6,480.00). 
4. The Fire Chiefs meet annually to revisit contractual implications. 

 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
$6,480.00 Added to revenue. 

42



 
ETQInterlocals/GFRAndCPFR 
HIRL Activation  
11/23/2020 
1 
 

INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT BETWEEN PIERCE COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION 
DISTRICT NO. 21 AND CENTRAL PIERCE FIRE AND RESCUE REGARDING 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT SERVICES AND OPERATIONS 

This Agreement is made and entered into effective _____, 2021, by and between Pierce County 
Fire Protection District No. 21, (“GFR”) a municipal corporation, political subdivision and fire 
protection district, and Central Pierce Fire and Rescue, a municipal corporation, political 
subdivision and fire protection district (“CPFR”). Both entities are duly organized and operating 
under and through the laws of the State of Washington. GFR and CPFR collectively may be 
referred to as the “Parties” or singularly as a “Party.”  

WHEREAS, the Parties see fit, pursuant to their respective authorities conferred by law, to enter 
into this Agreement for cooperative action pursuant to RCW 39.34.030. 

Now, therefore, in exchange for the mutual promises contained herein, the Parties agree as follows:   

Section 1. Purpose and Authority. GFR and the CPFR desire to contract with one another 
through an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement for purposes of exchanging resources on a case-by 
case basis to further emergency management and training. This Agreement is based upon the 
authority of RCW 39.34.030 and RCW 52.12.031(3), which allows public agencies to cooperate 
and jointly exercise their powers in ways that provide the most efficient use of resources. The 
Parties agree that this Agreement should be liberally construed to effectuate the purpose of this 
Agreement.  

Section 2. Scope of Agreement.  The Parties agree as follows:  

A. Exchange of Resources: Both Parties recognize the mutual benefits with providing more 
efficient use of resources by giving each other access to specialized labor, equipment, and 
materials as described in this Agreement, for purposes of emergency management.  
 

B. Activation of the DOC. CPFR may activate the DOC on its own accord or activate the 
DOC at the request of GFR for the purposes enumerated herein.  

 
C. In-Kind Services: The Parties further agree that at times, the labor, equipment, and 

materials may be furnished by one Party to the other Party in exchange for labor, 
equipment, and material furnished by the other, or in recognition of the benefit to the Party 
and/or constituents of said Party. Such in-kind exchange or benefit constitutes 
reimbursement and must be documented in writing and agreed to by both Parties.  

Section 3. Operation of the DOC  

I. CPFR Obligations. CPFR will:  

A. Barring a natural disaster or other event that renders the DOC facility unusable, provide 
equipment and personnel for operation of the DOC;  

43



 
ETQInterlocals/GFRAndCPFR 
HIRL Activation  
11/23/2020 
2 
 

 
B. Provide personnel trained in DOC operations and specific positions to help operate the 

DOC;  
 

C. Call the DOC into operation when CPFR’s resources are overwhelmed or anticipate that 
they will be overwhelmed and additional help is needed to most effectively serve the 
public; and  

 
D. Coordinate with GFR for services provided during an emergency declaration.  

 
E. Provide GFR initial and on-going training on DOC procedure. 

F. Coordinate the annual DOC exercise schedule with GFR. 

II. GFR Obligations. 

A. Barring a fire emergency that requires direct staff attention, provide a liaison (Chief Duty 
Officer, Battalion Chief, etc.) to the DOC to coordinate GFR deployment. 
 

B. Call the DOC into operation when GFR resources are overwhelmed or anticipate that they 
will be overwhelmed and additional help is needed to most effectively serve the public;  
 

C.  GFR shall remit by January 31 the following DOC operational costs: 
 

a. $6,480.00 (25% cost of 36 / 2.5 hour exercises or one per shift per month) 
 

III. Joint Obligations.  
 

A. The Parties shall operate the DOC in good faith, relying on both organizations’ staffing 
and resources to best serve the public, particularly during sustained operations;   
 

B. The Parties shall operate using the standardized National Incident Management 
System, where staff from either organization is interchangeable in serving the public; 
and 

 
C. The Parties may call for a joint activation of the DOC and 
 
D. The Parties agree to meet to discuss cost allocation should any exigent incident or 

sustained event exceed historical scope or intent of ILA. 
 

  

44



 
ETQInterlocals/GFRAndCPFR 
HIRL Activation  
11/23/2020 
3 
 

IV. High Incident Response Load (HIRL) Activation. 
 

HIRL activation is necessary when incidents overwhelm normal FireComm dispatch and response 
mechanisms. HIRL can be initiated by the Parties or FireComm for a variety of events such as 
weather events, natural disasters, communication failures and training. When HIRL is activated, 
Priority 0 and Priority 1 call types will be treated as priority calls and dispatched per normal 
dispatching procedures. All other calls will be categorized as HIRL, placed in a pending status and 
forwarded to the DOC for prioritization and dispatch. 
 
The HIRL process may be activated for purposes of dispatch or training.  

 
V.  Additional Terms and Conditions.  

Relationship of the Parties: No agent, official, employee, servant, or representative of CPFR is 
an officer, employee, agent, servant or representative of the GFR for any purpose. No agent, 
official, employee, servant or representative of GFR is an officer, employee, agent servant or 
representative of CPFR for any purpose. 

 Duration and Termination:  

A. This Agreement will be in force and effect from the last-dated signature herein. This 
Agreement will be automatically extended for additional five-year terms unless either Party 
provides notice of intent to terminate in accordance with this Agreement.   
 

B. Either Party may terminate this Agreement, prior to its expiration, by providing the other 
Party at least six months’ prior written notice. Such notice must state the grounds for the 
termination.  

Annual Review: The terms and operations of this Agreement will be reviewed annually in 
December of each year. The purpose of the review is to assure that the purpose and objectives of 
this Agreement are being met. This review will be conducted by a committee composed of at a 
minimum the Fire Chiefs of both Parties. This committee may be supported by staff of either or 
both of the Parties.   

Indemnification:  

A. To the fullest extent allowed by law, CPFR will be solely and entirely responsible for its 
acts/omissions and for the acts/omissions of its agents, employees, servants, or 
representatives. To the fullest extent allowed by law, GFR will be solely and entirely 
responsible for its acts/omissions and for the acts/omissions of its agents, employees, 
servants or representatives.  
 

B.  Each Party agrees to defend and indemnify the other Party and its elected and appointed 
officials, officers, employees, and agents from and against all claims, losses, damages, suits 

45



 
ETQInterlocals/GFRAndCPFR 
HIRL Activation  
11/23/2020 
4 
 

and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, to the extent they arise out of 
the negligence or willful misconduct of the indemnitor or its elected or appointed officials, 
officers, employees, and agents in the performance of this Agreement. The indemnitor’s 
duty to defend and indemnify extends to claims by the elected or appointed officials, 
officers, employees or agents of the indemnitor or of any contractor or subcontractor of 
indemnitor. The indemnitor waives its immunity under Title 51 of the Revised Code of 
Washington solely for the purposes of this provision and acknowledges that this waiver 
was mutually negotiated.  

Non-Payment and Other Defaults: In the event of any default hereunder, upon thirty (30) 
calendar days written notice by either Party with regard to failure to make any payment required, 
and if the same is not cured within sixty (60) calendar days, then the requesting Party is entitled, 
without further notice or demand, to give notice of termination as set forth herein.   

Disputes: Disputes will be referred to the Fire Chiefs of the Parties. If disputes are not resolved 
by the Parties within thirty (30) calendar days of the referral, unless the Parties agree to an 
extension of time, the dispute will be referred to an arbitrator who has been mutually agreed upon 
by the the Parties. Or if they cannot agree to an arbitrator, the Parties may apply to the presiding 
judge of Pierce County Superior Court for appointment of an arbitrator. The arbitrator’s decision 
is final and binding on both Parties; provided however, an arbitrator’s decision may be appealed 
to Superior Court if it is based on an error of law, is arbitrary and capricious, is not founded on 
substantial facts or exceeds the arbitrator’s authority. Each Party will pay one-half of the 
arbitrator’s fee. If mutual written consent to apply for the appointment of an arbitrator is not 
reached, either Party may seek court action to decide the disputed contract provision.  

Notice: Any notice required to be given by either Party to the other will be deposited in the United 
States mail, postage prepaid, addressed:  

To CPFR at:  17520 22nd Ave E., Tacoma, WA 98445 
 

To GFR at:  23014 70th Ave E., Graham, WA 98338 
 
Or at such other address as either Party may designate to the other in writing from time to time. 
All notices to be given with respect to this Agreement must be in writing. Every notice is deemed 
to have been given at the time it is deposited in the United States mails in the manner prescribed 
herein. Nothing contained herein will be construed to preclude personal service of any notice in 
the manner prescribed for personal service of a summons or other legal process. 

 Entire Agreement: This Agreement constitutes the entire Agreement of the Parties and 
supersedes all prior agreements, contracts, and understanding, written or oral. The Parties agree 
that there are no other understandings, oral or otherwise, regarding the subject matter of this 
Agreement. Any and all previous agreements, understandings, and the like, oral or otherwise, are 

46



 
ETQInterlocals/GFRAndCPFR 
HIRL Activation  
11/23/2020 
5 
 

hereby revoked. This Agreement may not be contradicted or modified except by a writing signed 
by both Parties.  

Construction of Agreement: In the event of a dispute between the Parties as to the meaning of 
terms, phrases or specific provisions of this Agreement, the authorship of this Agreement will not 
be cause for this Agreement to be construed against any Party nor in favor of any Party.  

Administration: This Agreement will be jointly administered by CPFR and GFR. This Agreement 
does not create any separate legal or administrative entity.  

Financing; Budget: This Agreement does not contemplate a joint budget.  

Property Acquisition and Disposition: This Agreement does not contemplate the joint 
acquisition of property by the Parties. At termination, each Party will remain the sole owner of its 
own property.  

Applicable Law and Venue: This Agreement will be governed by and construed in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Washington. The venue for any court action will be in Pierce County 
in any court with jurisdiction.  

Nondiscrimination: The Parties agree not to discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment or any other person in the performance of this Agreement because of race, creed, 
color, national origin, marital status, sex, sexual orientation, age, disability, or other circumstance 
prohibited by federal, state, or local law or ordinance, except for a bona fide occupational 
qualification. The Parties will comply with all federal, state and local laws and ordinances 
applicable to the work to be done under this Agreement. Violation of this section is a material 
breach of this Agreement and grounds for cancellation, termination or suspension of this 
Agreement.  

Waivers: Failure to insist upon strict compliance with any terms, covenants or conditions of this 
Agreement are not a waiver of such, nor does any waiver or relinquishment of such right or power 
at any time be taken to be a waiver of any other breach.  

Independent Governments: The Parties recognize and agree that CPFR and GFR are independent 
governments. Except for the specific terms herein, nothing herein shall be construed to limit the 
discretion of the governing bodies of each Party. Neither Party, except as expressly set forth herein 
or as required by law, shall be liable for any debts or obligations of the other. This Agreement shall 
not prevent either Party from entering into separate interlocal agreements as permitted by law.  
 
Files: All files and other documents maintained by either Party relating to this Agreement or the 
services provided pursuant to this Agreement belong to that Party. On request, such files will be 
made available for review by the other Party through a duly authorized representative from either 
Party during normal business hours.  

47



 
ETQInterlocals/GFRAndCPFR 
HIRL Activation  
11/23/2020 
6 
 

Public Records Requests: CPFR is responsible for timely and adequately responding to requests 
for records addressed to it under the Public Records Act. GFR is responsible for timely and 
adequately responding to requests for records addressed to it under the Public Records Act.  

Challenges and Non-Waiver: The entry into this Agreement will not be construed to be a waiver 
or abandonment of any defense or claim either Party may have against the other.  

Counterparts: This Agreement may be executed in counterparts, i.e. at separate times and in 
separate places, and a copy of this Agreement shall be deemed as valid as any original. This 
Agreement shall take effect on the last-dated signature below.  

Signatories. The signatories below hereby covenant that they are possessed of sufficient authority 
to execute this Agreement and bind their respective agencies, as delegated by the governing bodies 
thereof. 

Attorney Review. The Parties agree that they have had the opportunity to have this agreement 
reviewed by counsel. If two or more agencies signatory hereto are represented by the law firm of 
Quinn and Quinn, P.S. the Parties consent to the dual representation by such firm, if a signature of 
a signatory to the firm is affixed hereto under “approved as to form.”  

 
THIS AGREEMENT IS HEREBY EXECUTED: 
Pierce County Fire Protection District No. 21:  

By:_________________________________   

Name: Pate Dale      
Title: Fire Chief  
Date:  
 
Central Pierce Fire and Rescue  
 
By:_________________________________   
Name: Daniel Olson       
Title: Fire Chief  
Date:  
   
APPROVED AS TO FORM:  
 
By:_________________________________  

Eric Quinn, Attorney at Law Quinn and Quinn, P.S.  

48



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date: 01-11-2021 

Item Title: Training Division Update 

Attachments: Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by: AC Juarez 
 

 

RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:   

 

 

 

 

   
 

SUMMARY:     

 

 The Training Division is kicking off 1st quarter training. In the first quarter, we will be 

hitting the following subjects: 

o Commercial building fire MCO’s  

o Auto extrication  

o SCBA quarterly/team building  

o Officer development  

o Command lab for certified Incident commanders  

o Live fire training in the 60 tower 

 The Training Division has set the division 2021 goals. 

 The Training Division has reach out and confirmed 8 outside instructor led enrichment 

classes for our personnel for 2021. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

 

 

49



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   January 11, 2021 

Item Title:    Health & Safety Div. Report 

Attachments:    Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by:   AC McKenzie 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:    
We currently have 2 employees on 14-day quarantine for COVID at the time of this report.  
We continue to see increase in staff communal exposures  
 
Maintaining surveillance on current COVID conditions.  Pierce County has seen an uptick in 
hospitalization.  

December 1st 11.9%   occupied by COVID   patients   
December 29th 12.6 % occupied by COVID patients 

     Cases seem to have stabilized compared to 12/1   
     14-day case rate decreasing as compared to the previous month, however still high. 
 
TPCHD has not adopted the new COVID quarantine guidelines.  
At this time 139 employees have had or have schedule their first COVID vaccine.  
No significant reaction to date. 
 
No OSHA injuries to report 
 
M19-4 was involved in a MVC in Tacoma on 12/13, crews were traveling priority with patient to 
MBCH at time of ancident.  Damages were moderate, with one employee transported to hospital 
and released. Civilian transported with minor injuries.  Medic unit driver was not cited  
 
Chaplin Jeff & Audrey Keeton resign their position as Chaplains to relocate to Fort Worth Texas 
 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 

50



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   January 11th, 2021    

Item Title:    Logistics Update 

Attachments:      

Submitted by:   AC Stueve 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 

 Fuel Pedestal Replacement Process is underway; Expect replacement of 

pedestals to conclude by January 8th.  Maintenance Shop training – Fleet 

Mechanics will receive training on how to install devices on all apparatus and 

vehicles on January 12th & 13th. 

 Support Specialist Wiseman has been instrumental in integrating our new fuel 

system, assigning/distributing keys, and working with our vendor.  This project 

progressing along is a testament to her professionalism. 

 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
 
 

51



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

 

 

 
 

Agenda Date    January 11, 2021 

Item Title:    Human Resources Division Report 

Attachments:     

Submitted by:   Suzi Washo 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     

 
Recruitment 

 Entry Level 
o Applications were accepted through December 27th.  Here are the numbers: 

 A total of 785 applicants 
 629 met the minimum qualifications and were invited to test 
 569 scheduled their test 

o The exam is scheduled for Wednesday, January 6th 
o Interviews will be held the week of January 18th and will be done via Zoom 

  

 Promotional Processes 
o The first promotional process, Battalion Chief, begins at the end of January. 
o Captain and Lieutenant will begin late March/early April 

 
Other 

 The first quarter will be very heavy with recruitment, but in addition to that, we continue to work on 
updating policies. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  
N/A 

52



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 1 

       

 
 

Agenda Date     January 11th 2021 

Item Title:    Community & Government Relations 

Attachments:    Click here to enter text. 

Submitted by:   Captain Shaw 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:    

 
Civic and Community meetings online: 

Attending Online Civic and community groups via online Zoom meeting.  

 
Social Media:  

Attached are detailed social media statistics and performance for 2020 on Facebook, 

Twitter, YouTube, Instagram and Linkedin. 6,715,005 impressions on all platforms in 

2020 a 19.9% increase which is 611,952 more than 2019. 

 
Community: 

 Sunrise Community Holiday Parade was a massive success December 19th 12-3. 

Thank you Chief E. Stueve and Chief Karns for all your support. 

 Holiday Magic Parade at the fairgrounds was completely sold out Dec 4th-Jan 

3rd. Thousands drove by our Close Before You Doze display and tree. It was a 

fantastic turnout according to Fair PIO Stacy Van Horne.  

 The Santa Parades in Midland, Parkland, Spanaway, Puyallup and South Hill 

were OUTSTANDING. Wes Courtney, Luke Courtney and Chief Karns made it all 

happen. One of the best community events in 25 years. Big thanks to all the staff, 

crews and Adam Rosenlund for stepping up to help. 

 Crews are still attending birthday parades throughout the district.  

 Our social media accounts are still receiving record numbers.  

 

53



Profile Performance
January 1, 2020 – January 3, 2021

Understand growth and health of your social profiles

54



Profile Performance | 1 of 7

Included in this Report

Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Arson Dog Hansel
Central Pierce Fire & Rescue Central Pierce Fire & Rescue

55



Profile Performance | 2 of 7

Cross-Network Performance Summary
View your key profile performance metrics from the reporting period.

Impressions

6,715,005
17.3%

Engagements

611,952 19.9%
Post Link Clicks

16,421 9.5%

56



Profile Performance | 3 of 7

Cross-Network Audience Growth
See how your audience grew during the reporting period.

Audience Gained, by Month

Audience Metrics Totals % Change

Total Audience 39,644 37.5%

Total Net Audience Growth 9,470 30.6%

Twitter Followers Gained 3,492 5,191%

Facebook Page Likes 5,917 1.6%

Instagram Followers Gained 1,174 55.4%

We are unable to retrieve all of your data at this time.

JAN 
2020

FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN 
2021

0

1,000

2,000

3,000

4,000

5,000

6,000

Twitter Facebook Instagram

57



Profile Performance | 4 of 7

Cross-Network Message Volume
Review the volume of sent and received messages across networks during the selected time period.

Sent Messages Metrics Totals % Change

Total Sent Messages 1,572 73.1%

Twitter Sent Messages 420 23.2%

Facebook Sent Messages 1,046 174%

Instagram Sent Messages 106 42.7%

Received Messages Metrics Totals % Change

Total Received Messages 16,862 350%

Twitter Received Messages 9,411 1,430%

Facebook Received Messages 6,964 156%

Instagram Received Messages 487 17.9%

JAN 
2020

FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN 
2021

0

2,000

4,000

6,000

8,000

Messages per Month

Sent Messages Received Messages

58



Profile Performance | 5 of 7

Cross-Network Impressions
Review how your content was seen across networks during the reporting period.

Impressions, by Month

Impression Metrics Totals % Change

Total Impressions 6,715,005 17.3%

Twitter Impressions 2,325,745 -

Facebook Impressions 4,123,203 22.3%

Instagram Impressions 266,057 35.8%

JAN 
2020

FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN 
2021

0

500K

1M

1.5M

2M

2.5M

Twitter Facebook Instagram

59



Profile Performance | 6 of 7

Cross-Network Engagement
See how people are engaging with your posts during the reporting period.

Engagements, by Month

Engagement Metrics Totals % Change

Total Engagements 611,952 19.9%

Twitter Engagements 138,757 -

Facebook Engagements 454,101 6.3%

Instagram Engagements 19,094 25.4%

Engagement Rate (per Impression) 9.1% 2.2%

JAN 
2020

FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN 
2021

0

50K

100K

150K

200K

Twitter Facebook Instagram

60



Profile Performance | 7 of 7

Cross-Network Profiles
Review your aggregate profile and page metrics from the reporting period.

Reporting Period
Jan 1, 2020 – Jan 3, 2021

39,644
37.5%

9,470
30.6%

1,006
32.2%

6,715,005
17.3%

611,952
19.9%

9.1%
2.2%

Compare to
Dec 28, 2018 – Dec 31, 2019

28,837 7,249 761 5,723,961 510,379 8.9%

Arson Dog Hansel 411 193 173 87,763 14,315 16.3%

Central Pierce Fire… 28,284 4,918 374 4,035,440 439,786 10.9%

Central Pierce Fire… 3,755 909 106 266,057 19,094 7.2%

Central Pierce Fire… 7,194 3,450 353 2,325,745 138,757 6%

Profile Audience
Net Audience

Growth
Published

Posts Impressions Engagements
Engagement Rate

(per Impression)

61



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 
 

Agenda Date:   January 11, 2021  

Item Title:   Fire Chief’s Report  

Attachments:    

Submitted by:  Chief Olson 
 

 
RECOMMENDED ACTION BY THE BOARD:  

 

 

 

 

 
 
SUMMARY:     
 

Effectively Respond, Continuously Improve, Compassionately Serve 
 

Board of Fire Commissioners: 
 

1. Holidays: Happy New Year 2021. I think we are all hopeful about what 2021 holds 
for CPF&R. We are developing our 2021 Operational Plan and of course it brings 
much opportunity. Over the past two weeks most of staff have taken time off for 
the holidays. 
 

2. South Sunrise Appeal: No update on this appeal as of yet. There is a pre-briefing 
to align calendars this month. Attorney Sitkin is preparing our defense.  

 
3. New RMS Software Implementation: Chief Bouchard has led our efforts to 

implement a new records management system. The implementation has been 
with only minor problems which is exceptional with the amount of agencies and 
software that had to be integrated. His team accomplished this work in four 
months and landed well. I’m very impressed by his attentiveness and work. 
 

4. Washington State Auditor 2019 Audit: We are having the Washington Auditors 
Office complete the audit for fiscal year 2019. It is late this year because of 
COVID-19. Much of the work will be performed remotely. As with most of 2020 it 
should be a unique experience. 

 
5. COVID-19 Vaccination Process: The process of our personnel receiving a 

vaccination has been moving forward with many vaccines delivered and some in 
the process. This is the first of two vaccines they will receive. No one is  

62



 
            Board Meeting Agenda Item Summary 

Page 2 of 2 

 
 

communicating the next steps specifically for the non-uniformed employees. Once 
we know more we will advocate on their behalf to have access quickly as their 
jobs are crucial for our success in mission. 

 
6. Benefit Service Charge Modernization: We are working with Attorney Quinn and 

his son Eric is scheduled to present at your next meeting. He will provide an 
overview of their audit of our current system, identify weaknesses, discuss some 
actions, and listen to the BOC’s recommendations and concerns. After this initial 
discussion, staff will work with the Quinn’s in developing final recommendations 
for the BOC to consider. 

 
7. IT Consortium: We have completed the first draft of the ILA creating the IT 

Consortium. I think it is getting in good form and we will be sending it to our 
partners for review in January with a follow up meeting to address their concerns. 
We could have something for your consideration in March/April with a go live date 
of June 2021. 
 

8. Station 73 Historic Preservation: Vice Chair Stringfellow and I discussed some 
great recommendations for capturing the essence of the Armory and 
memorializing the impact the National Guard has had in our community and to 
protect our Country. I will ask him if he would be willing to share those ideas at 
this meeting. We have a meeting scheduled with the NG this month and I invited 
Vice Chair Stringfellow to the meeting. 

 
9. COVID-19: 

a. Emergency Declaration- No changes from previous meeting.  The 
authority has not been exercised during the previous two-week period. I 
will continue to report any uses of the declarations authority. 

b. We continue to have employees quarantined or in isolation from 
community based exposure.  

c. Governor Proclamation-Public Meetings: The Governor has extended the 
no public meetings through January 11th. We have not heard but expect 
more extensions based upon his explanations today. 

 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPACT:  

63


	1 - 2021-01-11 Board Agenda DRAFT1
	5B - 2020-12-28 Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT
	5C - 2021_01_11 Warrant Approval
	8A1 - AIS ILA GFR
	8A2 - 2020_12_23_ILA_Pierce21AndCPFR_HIRLActivation_Final
	9A - AIS - Training
	9B - AIS - HandS
	9C - AIS Logistics Draft
	9D - 1.11.2021  HR Report
	9E - AIS _ CGRO
	9E1 - Profile Performance2020
	9F - AIS - Chief



